We continue toreceive rave reviews for the John Moll Exhibit fzeid |

spring. The Moll Family was deeply moved and enjoyed seeing items of his
work they had never seen before. Our heartfelt appreciation goes to all who
participated, attended, or otherwise helped make this memorable exhibit
possible. A few catalogues are still available.

Need a hostess qift? Keep in mind our collection of John Moll prints and note
cards, as well as many other Oxford mementos, books and gifts.

Each year the Oxford Museum conducts two campaigns. In the spring, our
efforts are directed at renewing memberships; in the fall, wenaskbers and
other area residents to provide support primarily for annual operaliogsther
these two campaigns cover the basic costs of maintaining an activariviide
assured we are frugal in managing funds entrusted to us and we receive no
annual subsidies of county, state, or federal support.

Watch for our Annual Giving request in early November. We hope you will
include the Museum in your year-end giving. With your help, we’ll be able to
pay our mortgage and meet rising operational costs.
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November 28 - December 20 (weekends) — Antique Train Exhibit
Thursday, December 10 — Members’ Holiday Party
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The Oxford Museum collects, records, interprets and
shares materials relating to the history of Oxford,
Maryland and the surrounding area. Founded in 1964, this
nonprofit volunteer organization provides resources for
historical research and sponsors a variety of programs,
activities, and exhibits to foster knowledge and
appreciation of this community’s people and history.
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Gordon Graves, President
Kathleen Kurtz, V. President

Dorette Murray, Secretary
Bob Valliant, Treasurer

Ned Crabb Henry Hale Jan Mroczek Carol Patterson
Don Duvall Susie Hopkins Larry Myers Doreatha Rasin
Jeanne Foster Pat Jessup Tot O'Mara Beth Schucker

Rebecca Gaffney Bill Macfarland Stuart Parnes Nancy Wilson

Ellen Anderson, Executive Director
Leo Nollmeyer, Curator, Board Emeritus

Editors: Beth Schucker, Rebecca Gaffney

Contributors: Ellen Anderson, Pat Jessup, Kathy Radcliffe, Bob Shannahan
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The Oxford Museum

100 S. Morris Street, PO Box 131, Oxford, MD 21654
410-226-0191
www.oxfordmuseum.org, oxford_museum@verizon.net

Surely you knowyankee Pedler.the lighted skipjack that has bobbed Christmas
wishes in Town Creek ever since Curtis Applegarth built it for Alite: Steve
Zalik in 1967. QuirkyPedlerstories are told around town, like the one about its
name. Steve Zalik had heard “Yankee Peddler” and liked it. But Alice worried
because for centuries boats have been endowed with feminine gender. Would
linking a lady to peddling suggest disrepute? Steve’s solution was simple --
Peddler would buck
tradition and be ate”
Meanwhile as Applegarth
painted the name on the
bow sprit, he ran out of
room, so he left a “d” out of
Peddler, a clever solution he
thought. For the Zaliks, it
personified “Applegarth’s
endearing sense of Eastern
Shore practicality.” They
kept the name. So for 42
yearsYankee Pedlenas

been miss-gendered and
miss-spelled. That's Oxford.
That'’s history...... and the
beginning of a sweet story.

We are pleased to announce
that Alice and Steve Zalik,

now of Cambridge, have
donatedYankee Pedleto

the Oxford Museum in

honor of Curtis Applegarth

(see als®\pplegarthin this
issue). The skipjack has spent his entire life in Town Creek and ordydoming

those 42 years has he ventured beyond the waters of the Tred Avon. The Zaliks’
one wish was for #nkeePedle to remain in Oxford.

Making that wish come true required a community. It started with the agtyer
of the Oxford Community Center which welcoméankee Pedleas a resident in
its front yard. A host of Oxford volunteers began prepadedlerfor permanent
dry dock, including a team led by Larry Murray as well as marina owner, Tom
Campbell, and his boatyard staff. Finally, to maintémkee Pedlein

perpetuity, Diane Flagler established a memorial fund at the Musebamor of
her late husband Dr. Nick Flagler.

Please join us for the dedication¥dnkee Pedleat noon on October 17th at the
Oxford Community Center, as part of the Center’s Fall Festival “GnQiteen.”
The Zaliks, Diane Flagler and family members, and Cheri Fisher, dawdhter
Curtis Applegarth will attend the celebration.

Photograph from the Museum’s collection
by Paul Creelman
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The Museum is always grateful for members’ help purchasing itema/¢haite
unable to budget, including the following:
- Phone system with two handsets
Underwriting of holiday events - $250
Underwriting of back yard landscaping - $500
Underwriting of promotional listing in Talbot County brochure -$200
Paying off our $179,000 mortgage — no donation is too large or too small!
New awning for back door - $1,000
Artifact restoration —perpetual need because we have so many items of
interest.
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You never know where things will lead. Serendipity led us to the answer to the
guestion posed in our last issue as to what happened to the original Grace
(Episcopal) Chapel.

The Museum’s archives house oral history tapes that were ¢alibcted by

Jane Tucker in the late 1970s and early 1980s.0ne of the interviews tvas wit
“grand old lady of Oxford,” Miss Erma Stewart, who celebrated h&r 99

birthday in 1984.Recorded when she was a mere 93, Miss Stewart tells the story
of the missing chapel:

“.... they built a chapel up on Morris St. between Dr. S house
and a Mr. house. Now I've forgotten whose house that is now,
but it used to, well anyway, they built a chapel there and worshipped
there when | was a girl. And then finally, oh I think while still, while |
was still a young woman, the Episcopal church was completed, the
stone church as we always called it, was completed, and this chapel
was moved down Tilghman Street. | think it has since burned. It was
not used as a chapel.”

Stay tuned for the next ‘gems’ that may surface in future transergptWant to

join the fun during winter months? Opportunities exist for transcribing and
proofreading. Please contact Pat Jessup.

In the July 200%Historian, we included a picture of Samuel Chamberlaine Sr.
from Dickson J. Preston’s book, entitl&xford: The First Three Centuries
Bob Shannahan, museum member and benefactor and authority on Eastern
Shore historical portraiture, informed us of an error:

“The Oxford Historian image captioned “Samuel

Chamberlaine, Sr.” in fact shows Robert Field’s

1800 miniature of the Hon. John Leeds Kerr

(1780-1844). Kerr lived at

“Foxley Hall” in Easton and

married as his first wife

Henrietta Maria, a daughter

of Samuel Chamberlaine

(b.1742) of “Bonfield” and

Henrietta Maria (Hollyday)

Hon. John Leeds Kerr Chamberlaine.”

Shannahan attached the correct image of Samuel
Chamberlaine Sr. of “Plaindealing” (1697-1773) who
married Hennrietta Maria Lloyd. We are grateful

for his correcting this mistake. Samuel Chamberlaine, Sr.

2

A founding father of the Oxford Museum, and its President from 1968-1969 and
again in 1973, Curtis Applegarth was born in Cambridge. He started the
Applegarth Boatyard at the head of Town Creek (where now the Oxford Yacht
Agency stands) in 1952. He is renowned for building skipjacks for pleasure
boating. Applegarth’s skill as a boat builder was featured in the SeptéSbe

1965 issue of thBaltimore SupnSunday magazine supplement and one of his
skipjacks graced the cover. “This is the kind of shop where you take fiv

dollars’ worth of brains and a hundred dollars’ worth of work,” Applegatth to

the Sun. “Eastern Shore ingenuity, you might call it.”

He built 45 skipjacks, ranging from 16’ to 40’ long, “little skipjacks built to be
yachts, not workboats” tHeun’sauthor wrote. “If you study his little skipjacks,
if you take in their graceful lines, the carefully
hand-wrought details, the bright trailboards, if
you admire them, he’ll shove his duck-billed cap
to the back of his head and work his narrow sun
browned face into a smile and say ‘| make the
whole thing from a pile of lumber to the finished
boat. | can draw the plans and build from them|or |
can build’em from right out of my head.”

Applegarth was a fourth-generation boat builder,
using tools that belonged to his grandfather. He
patternedrankee PedleafterLittle Jackwhich
he built for his daughter in 1959 and which wds
given to the Chesapeake Bay Maritime Museym.
Most likely he built it during the winter as the
boatyard was busy in the summer months with boat repairs; and mosttlikely i
was fashioned with the same materials he used for other skipjabkdthe
Dorchester white oak for framing, North Carolina white cedar fossae

deck, and Western fir for deck beams and sterns.

Having worked in Cambridge for twenty years as a clerk in hardware and
clothing stores, Applegarth saved money to buy his Oxford boatyard. He
considered himself a fortunate man, “Most people are square pegs in round
holes. I'm one of those few who'’s doing what hediland is getting paid for it.”

Curtis Applegarth’s voice spoke “Eastern Shore” as much as his work did.
Fortunately the Museum has a recording from February 17, 1980 in which he
talks about establishing the Oxford Museum. His oral history has been
transcribed but nothing can replace the man telling his own story — atlvaice
captures the “sound” of place.
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One of theMuseum'’s goals is to engage young people’s interest in the history
of Oxford. Former teacher and Board member Dorette Murray chairs the
Educational Outreach Program. This year’s activities focused orvaamig

with Murray playing the lead role of Red Star.

We're pleased to report that Red Star presented the history of ive pedple

of this area to over 80 children and 30 adults, including special programs for
Oxford Kids Camp and the camp’s PowWow. Audience members for the
season’s finale included Harriet Slaughter and her granddaughter Lydia
Periconi; Peg and Joe Dieterle, their son Joe and his wife April, andohsir
Hayden, Luke, and Jake; Dorette’s daughter Laura Ellison and her children
Mary and Brendan. Marilyn Dietz accompanied her husband Bob who
videotaped Red Star’s rousing performance which will soon be available for
viewing on the Museum'’s website.

On behalf of all kids, big and small, thank you Doreltgiold star for Red Star!
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Six and a half years ago, local volunteers set out to restore the Jokay Wes
Methodist Episcopal Church of Oxford Neck as a heritage site. According to
Kathy Radcliffe, President of the John Wesley Church RehabilitatiordBoa
progress is being made with the buildings and grounds restoration and

interesting bits of church history are being
revealed. But her story is about faore
than the restoration of a church; it's about
the restoration of a legacy.

The original 1838 deed to the property
was located by Paul Touart, an
architectural historian hired by the
Rehabilitation Board. That deed
transferred land from Long Point Farm to
a group of people for the stated purpose
“that they shall erect and build, or cause
to be erected and built thereon, a house or

place of worship for the use of the
members of the Methodist Episcopal Church in the United States.”rEhe fi
building was erected soon after. Radcliffe adds that the cornersttre of
building we drive by today on the Oxford Road is dated 1875. What happened
to the 1838 building is unknown.

In the 1851 Easton Circuit Register, Touart found interesting evidence about
early church membership. Just before the Civil War, there were 34 arid 26
black parishioners at the John Wesley Church.

The Rehabilitation Board has also supported the recording of oral histories.
Radcliffe emphasizes that these bring life to the buildings and oliésraad
testimonies of the richness of religious spirit that filled the amuFhere is the
story about the second building on the property, as told by Nellie Leatherberry,
now 101 years old. It was a Cook Shop she explains in her recording. On
Sunday mornings worshipers went to the
John Wesley Church to sing and praise|the
Lord. Women sold food in the back of the
church around noon because members
became hungry waiting for the circuit rider
pastor who wouldn’t arrive until about 1
p.m. Nellie was unhappy with food being
sold in the church building and she made
known her unhappiness. So the Cook Shop
was erected, probably in the 1930s or
1940s. A lot of good food came out of that
little building.

Nellie donated her mother’s organ, an Estey pump organ built circa 1905, to the
church. Organist, Wayman Pinder, is currently raising funds for its atistor

Nellie is also proud that her former employer, Mrs. Alton Jones, a leading
community benefactor, gave three throne-like chairs to the church, lilkeegbos
often used in Methodist pulpits. These are being reupholstered.

A boon to the project, Radcliffe notes, happened this spring when the ldte Sara
Baker, a former member, bequeathed the church $41,000, the interest of which
will be used for utilities and maintenance. The perimeter of tickHas been
cleared. The clamshell driveway and some landscaping will soon be cednplet
The painting of the newly re-plastered interior walls will follow.

From Thanksgiving until New Year’s Day the new underground electric power
for the rewired church will illuminate the recently restoreddnsd glass

windows from dusk until 10:30 p.m.-- boldly lighting the darkness that borders
the Oxford Road.




